ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE COMMUNI TY AND REAQ ONAL AFFAI RS
STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2003
9:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Morgan, Chair
Representative Kelly Wlf, Vice Chair
Representati ve Pete Kott
Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Al bert Kookesh

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 387
"An Act relating to fines for offenses conmtted within schoo
zones."

- MOVED CSHB 387(CRA) OUT OF COWM TTEE
PREVI OUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
Bl LL: HB 387

SHORT TITLE: | NCREASE FI NE FOR SCHOOL ZONE VI OLATI ONS
REPRESENTATI VE(s): GATTO

01/ 20/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 20/ 04 (H CRA, TRA, JUD

02/ 05/ 04 (H CRA AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 05/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 387(CRA) CQut of Conmittee
02/ 05/ 04 (H M NUTE( CRA)

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the sponsor of HB 387.

NONA W LSON, Legislative Liaison

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2003



Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 387, answered
questi ons.

ALLEN STOREY, Li eutenant

Central Ofice

Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

Departnent of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During discussion of HB 387, answered
questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-2, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR CARL MORGAN called the House Community and Regiona
Affairs Standing Conmttee neeting to order at 9:00 a.m
Representatives Mirgan, Wl f, Kott, and Sanuels were present at
the call to order. Representative Cissna arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 387-1 NCREASE FI NE FOR SCHOOL ZONE VI OLATI ONS

CHAI R MORGAN announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 387, "An Act relating to fines for offenses
commtted within school zones."

Nunmber 0089

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 387, inforned the comnmttee that he has spent a lot of tine
in schools and thus in school zones. Representative Gatto
rem nded the conmittee that in the past the fines have been
doubled for highway zones that were clearly marked as active
construction. He related that he hasn't heard a public backl ash
to the aforenentioned. School zones, he opined, are even nore
danger ous because nost children are distracted. Therefore, the
public needs to be as attentive as possible in school zones. To
specify that [double fines] would be in effect in school zones
when the lights are flashing would work in Anchorage, but not in
the communities without flashing lights in the school zones. 1In
sone of the smaller comunities there m ght not even be signs.
He expressed the hope that the commttee could help him fashion
| anguage that would specify the tinmeframe when the fines would

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2003



be double and when they wouldn't because currently the |anguage
nerely specifies [there are to be double fines] in school zones
and thus |leaves the discretion to the police and state troopers.
He pointed out that the l|egislation defines a "school zone" as
"an area identified by signs as being near a school.”
Representative Gatto Ilikened [this [|egislation] to [the
statutes] relating to [double fines] in construction areas.

Nunber 0571

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS poi nted out that when one drives through
a construction zone, the signs specify that the fines are double
and thus he surmsed that the sponsor would want the signs in
school zones to specify that the fines are double.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUJELS asked if the nunicipalities would have to
hang the signs.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO renmarked that adding the |anguage "double
fines" to a sign wouldn't be nuch to add.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS surm sed that there could be double fines
in school zones w thout [specifying such on the signs].

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered that for alnost all traffic |aw,
i gnorance is no excuse. However, he said he would like to see
the double fine signs installed because it's a rem nder.
Representative Gatto highlighted that he wasn't doubling the
points, nerely the nonetary fine.

Number 0713

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS recalled the photo radar debate in
Anchorage. The debate arose because the police were considering
school zones as such even when the lights weren't flashing.
This legislation doesn't clarify [the tineframe when a school
zone woul d be considered such in relation to the speed limt].

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted the difficulty in defining this, but
informed the commttee that he had wanted [the double fines to
be inplenented] an hour before school starts to an hour after
school starts and an hour before school ends to an hour after
school ends.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 3- February 5, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS said he wouldn't know when school starts
if he doesn't see the flashing |ights.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO reiterated that ignorance isn't an excuse.
Furthernore, he noted that schools are starting and ending at
different tinmes not to nention that sone schools are active into
the evening as well.

Nunmber 0887

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT noved to adopt CSHB 387, Version 23-
LS1521\ D, Luckhaupt, 1/30/04, as the working docunent. There
bei ng no objection, Version D was before the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF noted that in his district there are schools
that have [flashing] lights and schools that don't. He asked if
the Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF) is
required to post an area that would fall under double fines. He
further asked if such a requirenent would be related to federa
funding for transportation.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO answered that he hadn't checked into that.
However, he reiterated that ignorance of the law isn't an
excuse, even if it isn't posted. Wth regard to whether the
police wll use this as an opportunity to set a trap,
Representative Gatto said that he didn't know. Representati ve
Gatto indicated that [per the definition of school zone in
Version D], these double fines wouldn't apply in an area that
isn't identified by signs as being near a school.

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF expressed concern with regard to whether
DOT&PF would be required to put up signs that specify the area
is a double fine zone. If not, is the school district going to
be faced with the additional cost of putting up such signs.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO replied no and explained that the
| egislation sinply says that if the signs are there the fines

are doubl ed. Again, if the signs [desighating the area as a
school zone] aren't there, then there is no requirenent to
double the fines. He nentioned that there nay be sone areas

that don't want to double the fines.
Nunber 1226

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS posed a situation in which soneone is
stopped for speeding on a Saturday in a school zone when the

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2003



lights aren't flashing. In such a situation, is the intention
to double the fines, he asked.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO rel ated his experience that when school is
actually in session, the school zone is fairly quiet. However,
the [drop-off] periods before and after school are busy and
there are also after-school prograns that go into the evening.
Representative Gatto specified that this |legislation doesn't
intend to exploit for profitability but rather to encourage
people to recognize that school zones are different and nore
i nportant than other zones.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS pointed out that school zones only have
| ower speed limts sonetines. However, Representative Sanuels
said he understood the sponsor to want to double the fines in a
school zone whether school is in or not.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO remarked that |ocations where there are
flashing lights indicating a school zone are ideal. He
explained that he didn't want to sinply specify that [a school
zone] is only where there are flashing lights because that isn't
a good idea either. Therefore, he chose [to define school
zones] as he did in the |egislation.

Nunber 1486

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT said that he believes this is a |audable
goal, but agreed that it's difficult to determne the best
mechani sm He expressed concern wth regard to giving [I|aw

enforcenent] discretion under this legislation. Beyond that, it
seens that this legislation is trying to correct an Anchorage
pr obl em He pointed out that of the 481 citations issued in
2003 410 were issued in Anchorage. Therefore, he questioned
whether there is a problem Representative Kott al so questioned
whether this |legislation [raises a school =zone] to higher
i nportance than those areas which specify "Children at Play".

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT related his belief that this is a |ocal
control issue, noting that he didn't know of any schools that
are located on state roads. Furthernore, he said he wasn't sure
of the conditions that would allow the state to control this.
Since nost of the [school zone fines] are issued under |ocal
ordi nances, he suspected there nay be a variation in the fines
for speeding in a school zone. If there is a variation in the
fines, then one group may be penalized at a higher rate than
anot her, which he indicated is of concern for him

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2003



CHAIR MORGAN noted his appreciation for what the sponsor is
attenpti ng. However, he highlighted that in Bush Al aska there
is the gamut of situations in school areas. Furthernore, he
said that nuch of Bush Alaska will never have signs nuch |ess
flashing lights.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that the wvariation of situations
t hroughout the state is essentially why the |egislation [defines
school zones] as "an area identified by signs". He reiterated
that if an area isn't identified as a school zone by signs, then
this | egislation doesn't apply.

Nunber 1821

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA rel ated her experience fighting to have a
flashing light in a school zone. She also related her
experience watching a school in her neighborhood over the course
of a couple of elections. She explained that on election day
the problens weren't those conming to vote but rather the parents
of the children in the school. Although the signage [that would

result fromthis legislation] mght be great, HB 387 proposes an
unfunded nandate, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO echoed his earlier testinony that schools
are active during other tinmes than when school is in session.
Furthernore, in the sumrer the school is often used for sports
practice. 1In fact, schools seemto be used year round.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT pointed out that since the legislature is
basically the authority in the unincorporated areas, he asked if
passage of this legislation would nandate that DOT&PF pl ace
signs in areas where there are schools [in the unincorporated
areas] and thus create a fiscal inplication.

Number 2050

NONA W LSQON, Legislative Liaison, Departnment of Transportation &
Public Facilities, related her understanding that upon passage
of HB 387 DOT&PF would only be responsible for the school zones
that are |ocated on state-owned, -nmaintained, and -operated
r oads. Each municipality and school district would be left to
deci de whether to mark [the other] school zones. Wth regard to
the wunorgani zed boroughs, M. WIson reiterated that DOT&PF
woul d only be responsible for those school zones on state-owned
r oads. She offered to find out nore about the unorganized
bor oughs. The departnment would make its own signs, she noted.
Wth the assunption that there are five school zones in

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 6- February 5, 2003



Anchorage, two up North, and three in Southeast, putting up
signs at 10 schools and perhaps an extra post would cost $70, 000
to $100, 000. However, she noted that the departnent is unclear
with regard to where exactly these signs would be pl aced.

M5. WLSON, in response to Representative WIf's earlier
question regarding whether DOT&PF would be responsible for
getting the signs to everyone, specified that DOT&PF would be
responsible for it's own gear. She recalled that there has been
a lot of reference to the construction law, which is different
than what this legislation is attenpting. She explained that in
a construction area, DOT&PF marks the |ocations where one enters
and exits a double fine zone because the construction zone is
constantly changi ng. In order to double the fine in a
construction zone, individuals entering and exiting the area
must be notified, which requires four signs so that people
traveling in both directions can see the signs. Therefore, four
three-and-a-half feet by three-and-a-half feet dianond signs,
$400 per school zone. The aforenmentioned estimte doesn't
i ncl ude perpetual maintenance or the cost of a new post, were it
necessary.

Nunber 2294

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS offered Conceptual Amendnent 1, as
fol |l ows:

Page 1, line 10, after "school zone."

Insert "In a school zone if there is a differential in
speed limts, the double fines only apply when the
| oner speed |imt is in effect.”

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS explained that if during certain tines
the speed |imt is decreased, then the double fines would only
be in effect during the tinme of |lower speed limts.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT objected and asked if Representative Sanuels
woul d consi der applying the above anendnent to work area zones
that are addressed in this legislation as well. He noted that
sonetinmes the [double fine] signs in the work zones are left up
when no one is working in the area.

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS agreed to Representati ve Kott's
suggestion and thus he anended Conceptual Anmendnent 1, as
fol | ows:

Page 1, line 10, after "school zone."

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2003



Insert "If there is a differential in speed limts,
the double fines only apply when the |ower speed limt
isin effect.”

CHAI R MORGAN asked if there were any further objections. [ At
this point, Representative Kott's objection was treated as
wi t hdrawn. ]

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he didn't object.

CHAI R MORGAN announced that [Conceptual Anmendnent 1 as anended]
was adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT turned attention to a docunent | abeled,
"State of Alaska Departnent of Public Safety School Zone
Violations FY 2003", which specifies that Al aska State Troopers
issued only 26 citations. |In what areas of the state were these
citations given, he asked.

Number 2500

ALLEN STOREY, Lieutenant, Central Ofice, D vision of Al aska
State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), answered that

he didn't have such information. In his experience, he
suspected that those citations were primarily issued in school
zones in the Mt-Su Valley and Fairbanks region. In further

response to Representative Kott, Lieutenant Storey confirned
that there are variations in fines because nunicipalities have
the ability, by statute, to establish its own bail schedule.
However, sone areas wuse the court's bail schedule, which
i ncl udes enhanced penalties for school =zone violations. He
informed the committee that wunder the state's bail schedule,
speeding in a school zone requires a nmandatory court appearance
with a six-point penalty. The aforenentioned would be the case
in identified school zones during the tinme one would logically
assunme that there would be danger to school children

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT turned to the substantial discretion used
when a speeding violator is stopped. He specul ated that there
is probably sonme discretion regarding whether to issue a
citation for someone stopped for speeding less than 10 mles an
hour over the speed limt. However, the speeding violation in
school zones seens to be taken nore seriously because of the
potential harmto children

LI EUTENANT STOREY agreed, highlighting that the |ower speed
limt in school zones is for the protection of the children.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 8- February 5, 2003



Therefore, a variance of four to five mles an hour could nake a
significant difference in a school zone where there is a large
nunmber of children or other traffic.

Nunmber 2668

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the 10 school districts are
currently signed.

M5. WLSON answered that from her wunderstanding, "Yes." She
reiterated that just to sign those 10 districts would cost
approxi mately $70, 000- $100, 000.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO inquired as to the [cost] of attaching a
rectangular sign specifying double fines in [these districts]
that are already signed as school zones.

M5. WLSON surm sed that the small plaques would probably cost
consi derably |ess. However, if DOT&PF is to be responsible for
[placing these signs in school zones], the departnent would
pl ace | arge signs.

CHAI R MORGAN asked whether there are regulations with regard to
the size and hei ght of signs.

M5. WLSON responded that in hazardous areas, such as work
zones, the signs are the three-and-a-half feet by three-and-a-

half feet reflective yellow signs. Ms. WIlson offered that in
this case, the departnment may put up the larger signs when the
change first occurs in order to inform the public. After a

certain anmount of time, the larger signs would probably be
replaced with the smaller plaques that would probably beconme a
permanent fixture on the post itself.

Nunber 2827
REPRESENTATI VE KOTT inquired as to DOT&PF' s position.

M5. WLSON said that the departnment would conply and agrees that
it would be to protect children. However, the departnent is
trying to determne the requirenents of DOT&PF with regard to
the size and nunber of signs this would require. Ms. W I son
noted that she had learned from Representative Gatto that there
are 506 school zones. Still, the departnment would need to
determ ne which school zones are |ocated on state-owned roads as
wel | as determi ne the nunber of signs required at each zone. |In
further response to Representative Kott, M. WIson said that

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE - 9- February 5, 2003



she didn't know how long it would take to conply with this
| egi sl ati on. However, she offered that to design and produce
signs takes a week. She remarked that getting all the signs
made and packed up and flying a group of workers where there are
no DOT&PF workers would require tinme and organi zation and woul d
be expensive.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked whet her, dependi ng upon the nunber and
cost of signs, this would have to go out to a request for
proposal s (RFP)

M5. WLSON replied that she didn't know. She nentioned that the
departnment woul d produce the signs and perhaps it would be nore
cost effective to deliver those signs to the area and have the
muni ci pality post them In further response to Representative
Kott, Ms. WIson said that there hasn't been a conparison
between this legislation and [simlar |egislation] inplenented
by the State of WAshington. However, she recalled that | ast
week Senator Wlken's testinony in the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee referred to conversations he had with sonmeone fromthe
State of Washi ngton.

TAPE 04-2, SIDE B
Number 3012

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if DOI&F would be required to
construct signs.

M5. WLSON explained that the |anguage referencing "schoo
zones" would nean that the departnent would have to determ ne
whi ch school zones are located on state roads and DOT&PF woul d
have to place signs on those roads. She indicated that the
| anguage would need to be specific in saying that the
muni cipalities and cities would be responsible for [municipal
and city] roads.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that school zones are already
in existence and this legislation doesn't address signhing school
zones or any requi renent for DOT&PF to add si gns.
Representative Gatto said that he would like to have signs in
pl ace for this. However, he said he would leave it up to the
communities to decide whether the signs are necessary.
Representative GGatto specified that he never intended for
anything in HB 387 to direct DOT&PF to establish signs in schoo
zones because he presuned that DOT&PF has al ready done its job.

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -10- February 5, 2003



If DOT&PF' s job is to place signs in school zones, then those
signs shoul d already be in place.

M5. WLSON reiterated that the discussion since receiving HB 387
has been to double the fines and DOT&PF has been asked nunerous
tinmes whether it would be able to nake signs to post in those
ar eas. Therefore, the presunption was that the school zone
areas would be clearly nmarked by signs.

CHAI R MORGAN asked if DOT&PF is prepared to issue a fiscal note.

M5. WLSON answered that she could provide the commttee with a
fiscal note. She nentioned that the larger the fiscal note, the
nore di scouraged DOT&PF will be. It would be expensive for the
departnent to post signs in areas where there is little to no
problemw th this.

Nunmber 2834

REPRESENTATI VE SAMUELS surm sed that if clarifying |anguage was
i ncluded that said no new signs were required, then there would
be no need for a fiscal note.

M5. WLSON replied yes.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT suggested that the effective date be changed
to January 1, 2005, because the [departnent] is unsure as to the

i npl enentati on period. If this legislation requires DOT&PF to
do sonething, then they should be allowed to do it in a fashion
that's acceptable and doesn't place the departnent in a

difficult position. Currently, this legislation doesn't have an
effective date and thus it would go into effect 90 days after
the governor signs the legislation. Furthernore, Representative
Kott said he believes that the public needs to have an
understanding of the <change in the law proposed in this
| egi sl ati on because it's a rather significant change.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that he was thinking [an appropriate]
effective date would be 12 nonths after the governor signs the
| egi sl ati on. Such a tinmeframe would provide the public with a
one-year transition during which the public could be educated to
t he change.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT said that the effective date can't be one
year after the governor signs the legislation because no one
knows when the governor will sign the l|legislation. Furthernore,
the governor can allow the legislation to go into effect wthout

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -11- February 5, 2003



signing it, which would occur 90 days after reaching the
governor's desk. Therefore, Representative Kott naintained that
January 1, 2005, is a good date that allows enough of a
transition.

Nunmber 2659

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT noved that the commttee adopt [Anmendnent 2]
that would add |anguage specifying that the effective date of
this legislation would be January 1, 2005. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

Number 2634

REPRESENTATI VE SAMJELS noved to report CSHB 397, Version 23-
LS1521\ D, Luckhaupt, 1/30/04, as anended, out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons. There being no objection, CSHB
387(CRA) was reported from the House Comunity and Regional
Affairs Standing Conmittee.

ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Community and Regional Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was
adj ourned at 9:55 a.m

HOUSE CRA COW TTEE -12- February 5, 2003



